Cam Walker

Helen Campbell Walker attended William and Mary from
1960 to 196ly, a period she describes as rather quiet before
the activism of the latter 1960s. During this time she
worked with the Women's Dormitory Association, Mortar
Board, and was a Phi Beta Kappa. After graduate school
she returned (in 1969) to teach recent American history.
Ms. Walker approved the transcript as submitted to

her.
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Cam Walker

February 18, 1976 Williamsburg, Virginia

Williams: The period basically that we're talking about is 1960
to 196h}when you were a student. If you had to charac-
terize the people you knew -- and it's always hard to
generalize -- how would you characterize William and Mary
students in the eéarly 1960!'s?

Walker: Well, definitely middle»claséi'white, of course. There were
no blacks here that I knew of until 1966, I think, when one
local student came. Fairly conservative.u.%lmost all of us
I think were pretty conservative. I don't remember
knowing any genuine social radicals of any sort. There
were a few .people interested in the civil rights movement
-- I knew a few people -~ but not much happened around
here)and-igfanything they did tended to be off-~campus
or something they had .done during the summer but on the

[rhey werel | bz
whole very conservative, middle-class sorts of people.
Williams: From’lheir backgrounds and from what they were probably go-
ing to be doing after college.

Walker: Yes. In terms of after college, the thing that I remember
best is everybody152"222533”23”5§35~52f32)was heading right
for northern Virginia and Washington) that a lot of them had
come from there, of course, especially in m&élass. They
hadn't yet imposed whagfhow a sort of informal quota, I

guess, on certain areas of the state to spread it around>'

and so I think maybe forty people my class alone were



from{W‘&fi‘High School in northern Virginia)and an aw-
ful lofwof them wanted to go back there. I can remember
thinking <%ket when you read about going away to college
and what people do

)
rushing off to New Ybrk)but everybody here the highest
I\

that many %?mes people talk about

goal was Washington, I think. I remember that struck me.
Williams: The attitudes then of the people you knew you say basically

were conservative. Well, = you and I spoke of when I was

in here the other day)there were a greapigigggr—e£ rules,

especially on the women, not on the men. How did students

feel about all these rules? Did they sort of feel restricted

and try to get around themupr did they accept them?

Walker: I think we accepted them and then evaded them or violated them
without seeing it as an issué;:just something you di%ébecaugﬁ”
ge thought they were silly)but there was nothing of the -
;tmosphere of the later '60s when you got people complaining
about hypocrisy and so on. I think we'd grown up in a .
much more rigid kind of society where you assumed that you
had to live with these rules or get around them as you
coul%i?&éaseaI know, for example, some of the rules about
signing out for weekends and thing%;beople would fudge on
that and not see it as any kind of moral or question of in-
tegrity. It was just something you did because the dumb
rules were so silly)and that was pretty true on a lot of

them. But we never mounted a big protest. We.laughed about

a lot of them, especially the 7:00 rule)which I think my



class was the very last one to have %hat% the first semester
freshmen year. We knew it was silly)and ﬁe knew it was
meaningless in a sense;I suppose we all had to study any-
how)so you either violated it or you didn't depending on
your convenience, not that you were terrified that anything
would really happen to you about breaking this rule.

Williams: This was you couldn't speak to men ...

Walker: Yes, You couldn't speak to men after 7:00 on weeknights.
I still can't remember whether it started on a Sunday and
went through Thursday or whether it was Monday through Thurs-
da¥égut even in the library you weren't supposed to speak
to a;y male and that one was violated quite a bit, I think. As T sy
%here was no real sense of outrage about this at all. I
mean obviously we worked for gradual change because I think
they kept extending the hours: I think when T was a fresh-
mesb nighes,

man we had to be in at 1O:OQA You had a certain number of
lates you could take, maybe half a dozen during the first
semester ,and you had to take them sometimes even to go to
concerts and thingé;il mean to socially approved events(;J
ané I know we thought that was sort of a hassle)but again
I don't remember a great uproar, just that they gradually
did push to get that moved back to 11:00 and maybe even-
tually 12:00; I can't remember what it was my senior year.

Williams: So you weren't witnessing as a student the death of in loco

Earentis)at least at William and Mary?

Walker: Oh, no, not at all) /ﬁecause even the reforms they made were



still very much within the in loco parentis tradition. It

was Jjust a matter of perhaps easing them a little bit, an
hour here, an hour there, changing the sign-out system a
little bit, or something like that. But nobody I don't
think really challanged the basic philosophy at all.

By the timé*;%u Were~ersenio§fparticularly; we may

have felt ;Ley were really silly)or even I know when I was
a freshman I though the rules were ridiculous in the sense
that I'd never had anything like that at hom%:and a lot of
my friends felt the same %ﬁiﬁg that they had had a great

deal more responsibility%;n a sense;at home and yet. as I

)
say we didn't really raise any kind of storm or protest
over it. I guess we Jjust thought, "That's the way it is."

Williams: On this campus in the early '60s was there was=#here as on
many campuses a desire to have student rights spelled out?
I'm thinking in terms of the way the situation developed
with the Statement of Rights and Responsibilities of the
late '60s.

Walker: No, I don't remember .any of that. I know we had the Women's
Dormitory Association,(I was vice-president and I know I did
the booklet one year.};But no, I think we felt we pretty much
knew where we stood)so I don't remember any kind of pressure
for spelling out the rights. There were a couple of 'uProars
I do remember. One -~ and they're really silly when you
think about it -~ but one was over not being allowed to have

a ?ommunist speak on campus and people did get upset about

7



that)and I've frankly forgotten what the resolution of it
was. Maybe we did get a policy spelled out there, a clear
policy on free speech on campus or something7but I know

there was prewdby much anger over that and a feeling>that

”this is ridiculousp we were perfectly able to listen to a

~

¢ommunist and either accept or reject his theories as we

f thats
chose.\égn even funnier one and more trivial buit brought
A

out more people I think was the uproar over "Hootenanny" [a teleuisien shaw.]

coming. They had wanted to come during reading perioggl

e

think it wasy/ for exam 7and the administration turned them

N SRR

down because they said we were all supposed to be studying
and that they couldn't offer this diversionary sort of
thing on campus during reading period. Well, everybody
again got angry and upset because they said we should be
able to judge for ourselves whether we needed to study that
particular night or noéiand I remember we-hed all the folk
singers-of whom.: there were a lot on campus -- got together
and held a protest over by the Sunken Garden. I think there's
a picture »f-us in the yearbook of tha’g, beeve&eeé can remem-
ber being there w&th:smmgshe~QJMLsingiﬁg some protest songs
they had made ﬁp about this sort of thin%jand‘ghe newspaper
editor posted a new priority on the Wren Build;ﬁg that said)
"First school to turn down 'Hootenanny'" end-aii—this—sort
of-stuffs As I recall they%eventually won that onej ?%ey
did let "Hootenanny" come. As I recall I didn't go because

I did have to studiland I think the roof leaked. Theéﬁust

IV
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have done it in Adair Gym when it jJust opened?and it rained

that night and the roof leaked all over everybody. So those

)
were sbout the only times student rights ever came up as an

issue and where we did perhaps challange: & in loco parentis

and as I say in some ways neither of those was all that
significant really.
With the/ﬁommnnist speaker questionuh_yow. you may or may
not remeﬁber this particular part of it: the Flat Hat ran
an editorial taking Paschall to task over this)and Paschall
called the editorial "board of the Flat Hat into the Blue
Room. Well, none of this showed up in the Flat Hat until
a year later when they did this big report on the question
of academic freedom at William and Mar¥i?eeeﬁee ;ﬁey felt
that only at this time could it be aired. So I was wondering
ﬁwere‘the students even aware that this went on at the
time? Apparently the Flat Hat thought it was just a dread-
ful thing.
You know, I really can't remember. I know that kind of is-
[Psschsl( 1

sue came up again later when heAcalled in the editor of the

William and Mary Review.When we -were seniors Jeff Marshall

had written an attack on William and Marj%'something about
the fourteen points.~_¥£ was a take-off on Luther's thesesg,

and- Jeff attacked William.and Mary as a Mickey Mouse place
‘ all

and listed eff his grievance?:@ad certainly the rumor that
A ! <

went around and that we all believélwas that Paschall had

called him in on the carpet and threatened not to let him



Williams:

Walker:

graduate if he didn't retract thi%baﬁQ/?f course it was al-
ready publisheé>and that he called him ;n several times and
really tried to intimidate higéaad g?e rumor we all be-
lieved was that -~ and this @8 I say was probably a rumor ,
but it gives you some sense of the atmosphere -- we had
heard that Jeff Marshall's father worked for Time or
Newsweek and that he threatened to write it all up and
embarrass the college if they didn't let his son graduate.
And I don't think legally Paschall could have stopped him,
Eut we were aware of this habit of Paschall's of calling

;n people on the carpet)but I don't remember if we knew
that about the‘f%mmunist speaker incident or not. I knew
some people who worked on the Flat Hat)and I certainly

knew - they did tend to get called in if he didn't like

something emd that he would berate them and so on)butlas I

)
say I don't remember whether we knew that about the ﬁ%mmunist
speaker incident or not.

Did you find while you were here -- you say you knew several
people on the Flat Hat -~ did you find that the Flat Hat was
leading or reflecting or out of touch even with student
opinion?

It's very hard to say because it would vary from year to year
depending on who the editor was and so on Eut I think it was
much more important than it is now. I wouia certainly say

that people read it much more reguldrly than they seem to

nowiax%iit was a source of real news about the campus. You



didn't have any of these competing things)like the William

and Mary News so if you wanted to know what was going on you

)
did read the Flat Hat on Friday nights or Saturday mornings.

I had the feeling that some years we thought it pretty ac-
curately reflected student opinion,but I don't think we
ever thought it was a real leader in any wa%)gut as I say
it's very hard for me to recall that. ]

Williams: And it's hard for you to separate it from whét you've known
since.

Walker: Yes, as I say. I dovhave the feeling that we thought it was
more important than I -'now have the feeling students think
“Hhem don 4
of the Flat Hat is. I think a lot of &3 see it half the
time or don't bother to read it)and I think then we all did
ﬁﬁ?and would debate or either agree or be angered about what
it happened to say.

Williams: 7You referred to Dr. Paschall's habit of calling iam-people in
on the carpet. Now your first year would have been the year
he came. Over the four years did yoy%ee a change in opinion about

- Dr. Paschall?
Walker: Yes, I think so. When he came I think he was greeted with
open arms, not so much by us because we were freshmen, but
by everybody else because of the terrible/éamiral who had

gone before so my feeling was there was a great sense:-of

J
relief and a feeling that this was a new start and . he'd
be pretty good and so on. F-@iso—==—gm¢ it's funny; I'd al-

most forgotten this until I happened to look back in a yearbook



or somethingi&%?’in his first years here he did invite a
lot of students in. He had receptions, ﬂ%ch the same
sort of thing Graves did in his first years herﬁ;aﬁ% I
think over a time that that tapered off)and he began to
seem a bit more remote although he did live in the house

)

during those dayibaad‘pe was very much on campus .,and his
! &

daughter was in my class. and he always talked about having

)
this special affinity for our class because we'd all come

at the same tinm.fo I think maybe we, evenf%gzagh we

gr aduated, haqﬂnot a completely negative opinion of him.

I think we'd been disillusioned on some things‘iﬂs I

say this business of calling people in and things like
thaglbut I don't think the opinion was nearly so hostile

as it was when I came back to teachywhen he wiebually-
Hasalé-on-ecampus -t t-wach-or-ire wasn't living in the house
that much and so on. I think he seemed much more a part of
things when I was an undergraduatgign&-}t may have been that
Tish Z?aschall7 was in my class)and we zgre in Mortar Board

>ané I can remember having some meetings over at her

house  and I think her mother was one of our advisors and things

together

like that)so you did have a feeling they were pretty much a
part of the campus and so on. But I do think that a sense of
disillusionment had begun to set in)although it wasn't terri-
bly serious)I don't ‘think.

Williams: And you would attribute it to such issues as the speaker?

'@
Can you pi%fpoint anything else?
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Walker: Well, there's another series of things. My problem is
that I can't now remember whether I knew this for sure
as an undergraduate or if I knew about it 1atexé;3ut on
the -racial question. -I'm pretty sure that even/though
I was . not active ¥ m-predéy-suwre that I had heard from
people theb he was veryi;:m on this@eﬁd I did know, for
example, a student in the theater department 3and she told
me that they had wanted to offer sort of a one-act play
that involved blacks.gnd /l‘b was only for a classy it
wasn't even & public performance) and they'd wanted to
bring up some students from Hampton and do this jointly,
and she swore that Paschall had just forbidden that. So
I know that I had heard that when I was an undergraduate )
and I'm pretty sure I had heard from Dick Sherman maybe my
senior year(ﬁhen I would have been doing honors and sort
of getting to know him better\that Paschall had called in
some students who had brought black students on campus
and asked them not to do that)which, of course, was com-
pletely illegal ; “You couldn't really do that and that he
also complained ;bout people bringing black fn\:'iends into
the %ampus %enter, into.: the WigwamOio I think - I knew
he was very ,bad on that issue) but as/I say it was not an
issue that really agitated the campus at all. I remember
we all sort of noticed when they admitted the first black

studentj»and in a sense we were almost cynical about it.

We said, "Oh,isn't it typical that of course it's a town



1

student. That means you escape the dormitory‘proble%yﬁaai

se=en but as I say we were very apathetic)and you'd
-,

o
g

hardly know the civil righ{ movement was going on, at
least from the people I knew. As I say I think there
were a couple of people -~ well, one person in my class
and then a couple of people from the classes behind me — —
who wWere more active}but I think the general run of the
student bodyé,aég just didn't even question what was going
on realLy.\%&r&?say gyere's another interesting story
about that>but I know I didn't ever find out the true part
until after I had leftyso it wouldn't really have affected

mﬁyput one of my friends was supposed to be a Ludwell house

-

president her senior yeaQbermbgpat was a sought-after posi-
tion,I would say,in those days. It was fun; you got your
room free, alsgigﬁé 20 Marcia was supposed to do that.
Well, when we came bgék senior year suddenly it turned out
she wasn't being allowed to do it,and theﬁﬁad to find her
another room some plac%pand gheﬂwould never say at that
time why, what had happened./Wé just knew that the dean of
women and others had said no, she couldn't serve as a Lud~
well house president,even though she had been chosen the
previous spring. It wasn't until after we graduated that
I guess she felt free to talk about i%aand Ehét had happened:
she had been down in(’I thin@(&reensboro, ové; the summer

and had been arrested in a sit-in)and her name had gotten

Wi
in the paperg&égg some sort of indication that she was a William
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Walker:

12
here
and Mary studengsaad‘geopleAﬁho had seen that and were horri-
fiecb‘gnd they thought/that made her unfit to be sort of a
counSelor to freshmen girls)so she wasn't allowed to have
that. But I think they must have told her she couldn't
talk about it either because she;-as“f“eé§%iyhile we
were still here she never really explained to anybody why
they had denied her the right to be a counselor)and it
was only, as I say, after we graduated that I found out
that's what it had been. So that indicates the kind of
intense conservabism that there was. I doubt that Paschall
personally had anything to do with that)but I think that
Dean Donaldson's office and so on;“that anybody who'd ever
been in jail)even for a good cause,was just unfit and had
probably brought disgrace to the school or something.
Was there in the early '60s = the suspicion about administra-
in acllege
tors that, say, students from when I wasﬂfheae, hagd?
No, I don't think suspicion. I think we thought some were
incompetent thet we were not terribly impressedybut I don't
think there was the kind of hostility and suspicion that
you get in the late '60s at ali. Again. it's mogé:!éﬁiitti-
tude toward the rules. I think that you Jjust assumed that
every school probably had administrators like this and
you just had to live with it)and if they were incompetent,
okay, just live with it. The one person who ~-- we didn't

view him with suspicion)but he was sort of the clever,

evil figureiwhich makes me laugh now that I really know him)
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B|Rd-so-on was Lambert.

I was wondering what kinds oﬂgfview students took of him?
Well, he was the man who knew everything, absolutely
everything(f it used to Jjust amaze ué)) jartly because he
was dean of students and registragbseainmfa@%mgffge must
have the most incredible memorysmbaeeaee you had ;he feel-
ing he knew every grade you'd ever gotten. He knew every-
thing on your record’gnd he would walk up to you and spill
it all out Put as I say he was the real. ' force around here,
I think, & Ear as students were concerned. - one™
and- I think we always felt he always knew what we were up
to and was always the one they'd call on in any kind of
incident. There was a panbty raid or attempted panty raid one
night -- it must have been my sophomore year because I was
living in Chandleg;‘ 2@@ power had gone outjand it was

in the spring and very warm. So all of & sudden you hear
all this noise and all the people pouring across the Sunken ‘
Garden heading for the girls' dorm%ggrd I don't know if
anybody even got into any of the dorms. I think maybe
somebody got in 2 window or something but nothing much
happeneqybut all it took to break it up was Lambert ap-
pearing on the scene. He just walked over(%ecause he

lived right across the street and just walked¢oveg)and he
was always distinctive}inrhiS"b-he carried his little
umbrella apd-go—en. As soon as word went out that Lambert

7>
was there and was probably going to take down names everybody
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h

Jjust fle%i?nd’I don't recall if there were any repercussions
at all; I don't think anything really happenggjsut he had
that kind of power because you knew that hé?ggéfggﬁdentify
ymuin%%mﬁészso if you were caught doing something he would
be the one. But again. it was almost a kind of fearful
respect people had for him rather that real hostility or
hatred or anything like that.

I had wondered what was the view7and I'd like to ask

some people from later in the '60s.

Well, I remember I was Just shocked to see whenever that b%a
sit-in in James Blair was that he was sert-of the most
libera%;an& Eg was the one who handled the students best

in the late féO§3beeeﬂse€§as I say our image of him had
been so different. We thought he was the real tyrant) and

yet in fact, of course, he later emerged as much more rea-

sonable than some of the strange people in Carson Barnes's
4 Us

office and so on but as I sanﬁor as undergraduates he was
Cg N
the one you had to watch out for.
ces
As far as student leadership, side from administrative
1

leadership, @o€3- was it true that in the early '60s that
the student leadership was reinvigoratedjand if so, why
was this so? Now in answering that you've got to more or
less compare it to what you've known since you've come back>
which is hard.

I don't think that is true)as a matter of fact. It strikes
me as far as student govermment goes it's exactly the same)reallnj
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1hs€® gvery campaign, of course,promises reinvigoration or
betterwpeoplgﬁ?ecause %ﬁ strikes me that we have all the
same complaints about student govermment that you see

now. Now. I may be very biased because I was never too
impressed with student govermment-types at all)so as I
say I'm probably not a good one to comment on that. I
just remember that a lot of my friends and I just were
sort of egynical about them and thought,ﬂgh, it's Just

the same kind of politicians you have in/high school. e
gae%wa&&*thmﬂgh%vjhey're all just continuing on)and it's
the same old type;)and okay, we'll go vote for the best of
them)but don't expect anything much from themagnd gpey‘re not

y)
that important to our liveijso I wasn't really good friends

with anybodiiﬁZS an important leader in the S.A. or what-
ever it was called)andtas I say we Jjust didn't have much
respect for them and didn't feel like they ever accomplished very
much anyhoqﬁgut if you go.in never expecting them to. it
Jdnd-of didn't matter. Now if you talked to Jerry /Van
Vé%fhig? or somebody like that, I'm sure you'd get a very
different view)but)as I say it strikes me as very much the
same as it is now. I'm sure if you went out on the campus
today a lot of the students would just say,"Who cares about
the 5.4.7" or something like that.

Williams: You've worked since with the B.S.A. Have you found this to

an

be any more effective instrument than the S.A. in voicing
l\f .

all-college concerns?
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Walker: It was in the first couple years I was on it. The very
first year I was on it (when Mary Edwards was chairman)
was very good. A lot of it had to do with Mary's per-
sonality and leadership; she was an excellent leader
and very good. ﬁlso; we were dealing with problems, I guess,
thaéhge;; j;gég;iéitato be solved. That's when they were
finally getting rid of a lot of the restrictions)so I think
we had some concrete thiegs to do and actually did -4, then,
You know, the recommendations actually made a difference.
Now I served two more years. The second year I felt wasn't
quite as good; the third year was farther down:bill)anéf%as
really ready to get off. Partly we had solved a lot of the
problems that could be handled in that kind of foé@)and I
think now I sometimes<have the feeling they're searching for
issues)pr they're trying to do things that the B.S.A. by it~
self really can't do. They're getting much more into things
where the faculty has a very large voice. I think the issues
we were dealing with when I was on it were mainly student con-
cerns where the faculty was quite sympathetic>and it was just
a matter of kind of pushing the administration to take the
final step and get away from all the remnants of the rules
and regulations and so on. I really enjoyed it the first

year or so and thought it was very effective,but by the

)

time I was about to leave it I didn't think it was accom~
refples attebies
plishing too muchxand I thought some of the studenqﬂ‘were

more these student-politician types. I thought their concerns
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were a bit narrower)and they were much more interested in
their image on campus than what we were actually doing)
whereas I never had that feeling about Mary or some of the
people on the B.S.A. those first couwple years. 1 thought
they were really interested in the issues and were not try-
ing to promote themselves.

Williams: You mentioned that you were officer of the W.D.A. It was
while you were here that what had been the old W.S.G.A. or
whatever was abolished and became the W.D.A. Do you remem-
ber any of the reasoning behind why th;s was done)or what
the W.D.A. was suppose to accomplisﬁ?;:i the other organiza-
tion hadn't.

Walker: I think that must have happened around my sophomore year be-
cause I do remembefitﬁé change occurred. It seems to me --
I guess the old W.S5.G.A. had almost been a parallel student
government for women or something.

Williams: It began that way.

Walker: Yes. And yg;ess we déclded in a sense that it was just
an anachronism and that the only real difference between
the men and the women was all the stuff connected with the
dorms)really. That's where the rules were mainly imposed.
QLAnean.}t had to do with your curfews and the weekend %h&ﬁgs’vvﬁﬁs
and all’that sort of stuff)and so I think that was the main
reason.that it was just much more sensible to limit the con-
cerns of the women'sjggggéfigion to the domitories because

[

that was the essential thing they had anyho%:?né—ehat this

o
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other was just a outmoded idea.\féhat did we do? It's so
hard to remember what we even did in the W.D.A. I ran

for vice-president or got into it because I had been a
Ludwell house president. As I recall our little handbook
mainly dealt: with these various rules for women in the
dorms>and~%hat our main job was to orient the freshmen

to this. Oh, they had to take a test. I'd forgotten.

They had to pass this test that showed they knew all the
rules)so I gue§§ then they couldn't later argue ignorance was
with anyj?ggigzz-defense. So. I think we had to administer
thaty ﬂad some sesssions beforqjhand to show them the hand-
book and make sure they had read it and could answer: these
various questions. We also had trials, of course.y ff there
were violation%DI guess each dorm had a council of some sort
that dealt with them at the lower. level)but they could be
appealed, I think, to a higher W.D.A. courtjez the very
serious ones might come there and we would impose whatever
penalty. And some of them were pretty strict. People could

be campused; you know they couldn't go off campus for four

)
weeks or three weeks or something like that)and some,as I
‘U\ B
recall, even had to be in y@ér room by a certain hour at
A

night and so on. So we did perform that function,although

I don't remember being involved in too much of that at

all. I don't really remember any very serious cases arising
during my senior year‘when I would have been involved.

Williams: So then disciplinary infractions were handled by the students
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rather than the dean of womens office if they were of a
less serious nature as you're btalking about?

Walker: Yes. I think maybe we had to file reports with her of=-
fice. A lot of it dealt with noise~beeawse(we had all
those quiet hours in the dormsvand 50 a lot of things
would be complaints that so-and-so had been violating
quiet hours like mad. Others would be latenesse35 #f
somebody was late beyond a ceritain number of minutes and
had not called in and had no adequate excuse then that
had to go to some sort of trial. But as I say the
dorms handled that)although probably a report did go in-
to her office.

Williams: At one point -- it was after you would have been with
W.D.A. @y‘tbe Flat Hat charged that the W.D.&. was
"the enforcement arm of discriminatory policy." Would
that have been true then? I asked this of Lori Cornette)
and she said, "Well, in a sense."

Walker: Yes, I think so>because the men had nothing like this at
all)so we were enforcing what were discriminatory policies.

Williams: But you didn't look at it thislway?

Walker: No, we knew perfectly well that the men were much freer)
but I think it was that we were still used to living in a
society that just had the double standard for everything,
a%g I guess we—bthoughdy-asd.say, beyond these pushes for

maybe getting a hour or more here, an hour or more there,

that we just didn't think of taking on the entire system.
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I guess we thought that William and Mary was a very conserva-
tive place and that this would be just a hopeless struggle,
really. Especially by the time we were seniors we were all
very much aware that this was a pretiy conservative places
%ﬁ@?Dean Donaldson seemed very old to us even thenjand .

Lambert seemed pretty conservative, so I'm sure we

J
thought there wouldn't be any f@@ﬁkwk» support for this
from any of the deans or anythin%)se I think we Jjust wesen -+

amanbegafighters)really)so we worked within the system.

?? Now it's interegting: }ffew people could always defy pules
Ft and get awayrgggm it. One of my friends roomed with

semegte
a woman at least on§&~— I'm not sure this woman really
stayed here -- but we had all the dress rules, of course,
that we violated like mad a lot of the timeéjgg§?£he
had horse somewhere around}so she just wore her riding
outfit all over the place. She'd come in the dining hall
and everything else)and we al‘ ere just in awe of her that
she had this much nerve)but nobody ever challenged her be-
cause she always looked very imperious about the whole
thingwand so she never got any demerits or any of the other
things we were supposed to get for thiipaﬁd I think pro-
bably ther;i;?always a few people who just defied every-
thing)and as long as nobody really challanged them they
got away with it. But the rest of us buttoned up our

raincoats and everything else. <kb~wz=s for years after I

got out of here <%hest if I happened to have a raincoat on
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over bermuda shorts I had tmsigém to
button up the whole thing so that you couldn't really tell
I had on shorts! Even that was supposed to highly illegal,
but we all did it)of course)because it was just so im-
practical some of the timeé‘aha'béou were only supposed to
wear your shorts when you were oi your way to gym class
or coming back fromﬁ:inass. Maybe you were allowed to
wear them to social parties in the spring at a fraternity
thing or something )but even then I think you were supposed
to at least have your raincoat over them or something — —
strange \ And the reason they always gave us for all the
rules wes—tlat -- it was probably just a cop-out on the

was thet
part of the deans “/\(LW' wanted William and Mary students
to look nice. And of course, we used to laugh hysterically
because the tourists looked awfullsand we'd say, "Why are we
all in these dresses when they're all wearing pink short
shorts or something')' but this was always one of the answers
that was given if you ever asked about these crazy dress
rules. ifa'a-leaan,’ilqis college is always on display)and
C.W. Jjust wouldn't like it if you all looked cruddy and
messy and so on.” As I say, I'm not sure that's at all
true>but that's what they liked to tell us. I guess they
figured we couldn't quitesee Tigqht C.W. or
something.
You referred in passing to fraternities. The early '60s

lumped
is ofter}\ -Z'seg;-ed with the '50s as a heyday of Greeks. Did
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you find this so at William and Mary?

Walker: They were important. I don't think they were as important
as I would gather they were on really large campuses or at
a place like U.Va. I guess, though, that I did think they
were fairly important because I can remember being very sur-
prised to discover that the percentage of people who belonged
was always only about half)and yet my impression was always
that at least 90 percent of the people must hare belonged
to either sororities or fraternities.)although Igess I
thought that the sororities were a bit stronger than the
fraternities because the fraternities didn't have houses,
of courseg #hey Just had the lodgesfipd you often had the
feeling that they existed only to p;;ty and that they didn't
have even a semblance of the kind of brotherhood or whatever
that they're supposed to hav33§ﬁﬁigp I think #z;ually felt
that the sororities actually did a/few more things besides
party and were a bit stronger and that the fraternities were
mainly just strictly social. Also it seems to me -- now this
is just an impression and it may be totally wrong -~ that I
knew a few more interesting meﬁzsgre independent%whereas
most of the women who were active on campus seemed to belong
to sororities)énd‘IfSOmehow had the feeling there was less
pressure or whatever to join a fraternity than there was to
join a sorority. But as I say I may be really wrong about
that; that's Jjust sort of a vague impression I had. #And

3ertainly the fraternities were an important part of the social

-
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life. I mean, that's about all that was happening,I guessg
~anﬁ-§t was all pretty silly and dumb. They used to have
the ;Gaza Strip party" between the Lambda Chis and the Pi
Lamﬁpaad, Zpu know, now you think it's so appalling they
could joke/;bout wars between the Jews and the Arabs -=md
~stuff-berause é;e Pi Lams were primarily Jeﬁish)so they
would play the Jews or the Israelis)and the Lambda Chis

would play Arabiﬁaﬁ@apeople would go dressed up to these

z

things ?nﬂ?suwunn I guess it shows you how unconcerned
we were with real issues or something. I guess I did
think they were fairly important,though. You didn't have
any of the sense that they were under attack or that
people were -- a few people didn't join them because they
thought they were elitist or undemocratic)but that struck
me as a very small number of people. I rarely heard peo-
ple saying they had consciously decided not to join for
that reason. Some people didn't join because theyouldn't
afford it>or others just weren't that interested)but I
can only think of a few people who really raised the is-
sue of the nature of the sorority or the fraternity and
how the selections were made and so on.

Williams: Of course, I'm asking this from the viewpoint of looking
back Frem a time when they weren't so strong. When you
thought about joining a sorority, what then influenced
you to join?

Walker: I guess I thought I always maybe would. SEamaﬂ%g I think when
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we were coming to college 1in my generation er-whatevary i
that was just seen as part of college life)and in some
ways -- and maybe this is differant for other people --
I think my parents encouraged me because they thought I
would become some southern belle or something. So. they
were pretty friendly. They had always said, "Oh yes,
we'll pay for i?; ené~ge—on SO do go through rusgg;aﬁb
go~emz  And I think a lot of my friends were like that.
Some came knowing quite a lot about sororities and had
already picked out specific ones because maybe a lot of
their friends a couple years older had belonged to it
and whatever. But I think on the whole a lot of us Just
assumed that&@s part of college life; all good middle -
class people probably also joi%?sororities and frater-
nities then. My father had been in a fraternity)and my
mother -- and maybe this was an influence on me, too -~
had very much wanted to join one but had not been able
to afford it during the depression an@Zaingat she had
been very upset by that. So I think I was probably
getting this sense from home that)"well, we certainly
will pay for itlfnd if you want to, you shoulé; ardatt
hia-sort-of-sbuff . ’Also‘ when I was a freshman -- this
continued, I think, mostly throughout my undergraduate

years although again it eased off a little bit ~-- the

)

rules were extremly strict first semester about contact

between freshmen women and sorority women,.. I mean
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ridiculously strict. Again you had to be very careful
about even talking to sorority women)which made everybody
paranoid about the whole thing. It may be because second
semester rushwasn't all that oldf I don't know when they
put that in} Igut at any rate there was tremendous concern
over dirty rushln%)ané so you might know a few upper. ¢ “class-
men from Jour classes C}f you were taking a 200-level
course of some sort you migh)@)and I guess you could talk to
them in classes and so on or activities)but any kind of
social contact was supposed to be very, very limited. It
made for a very artificial atmosphere on campus. I guess
the freshmen were mainly thrown with each other. Now

where a lot of rushing did go on, I think, despite all the
rules>would be at fraternity parties.If you were dating

a fraternity man then you probably did meet a lot of the
sorority Women)and they did do some sort of subtl‘j;shing)
but a lot of us weren't dating anybody in.the fraternities
or anything)so that was completely outside our sphere.

What this meant was that rush was actually the first time
you got to meet a lot of people on campus ﬁhat;%Aihe first
time@ Zou Jjust met all these hordes of people )and I can remem~
ber tﬁinking after rush was all over how nice it was to walk

round campus and actually know all these people 0
a. o) a ¥ peop C}nxumwag% you

.2
=

know, you met a lot of people in houses ket -~ obviously you

-

could only join onifbué-peepleyﬁho really became good friends

later ogﬁaﬁd I can remember thinking that the system was pretty
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bad because it had kept you isolated for a whole semester,
although maybe it helped the freshmen get to know each other
better. If you couldn't talk tc anybody else, I guess so.
But it was .4 very, very ar'bificial") I think a lot of
people went through just to meet people. Some who didn't
think they could afford to join nevertheless would go
through rushyor people who had doubits would go through rush
just to find out how the other three-quarters of the

campus lived(éort 09. I mean 1if you can't talk to any
upperclassmen in any comfortable way it's very strange,

and so from that point of the view the rush itself, although
I guess nerve-racking as it always "is in some ways,was

a lot of fun because you discovered, "Gosh, there're all
these interesting people I've maybe seen but never been
able to talk to."

Williams: Did I understand you to say that you didn't really feel a
great deal of social pressure to joiﬂg_like you'd be a no-
body at William and Mary if you didn't

Walker: No, I don't think sgﬁgnﬂ.%n fact -~ I lived in Ludwell be-

cause I was an out-of~-state student, and there were five of

3
us in a suite)and only two of us went through rush. The
.
other three I guess didn't make their gradescanmdriThere

thein
were a number of people who did not makqxgrades and so

couldn't go through;seuéa_a_senseu-é?a‘1ot of them

pledged later after they made the gradeij but there were

a lot of people who didn't go through)and so I don't think
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you would have felt terribly isolated. Now I can remem-
Lrer me. ]
ber that it was sort of a touchy situatioq&because you
didn't want to come home from a party and talk endlessly
Cautte pates

about it if thez&were feeling badly that they hadn't
made their grades and couldn't go througEDEPt certainly
a lot of people I knew did not go through that first time)
so I don't think you would have felt your social life was
wrecked or that you had no future or anything like that
at all. It was kind of the thing to do)but the pressure was
not so strong that you would feel you would have to commmit
suicide or something if you didn't make it. And people, of
course, did get cut at the end and so on)but Idon't think
it ruined their lives or anything like thagggut maybe I'm
too optimistic since I ended up joining one ;hat I was
fairly satisfied with;I just didn't have enough perspec~
tive as to what other people were thinking.

Williams: Did the fraternities and the sororities then have to carry
the burden of the social life that did go on here?

Walker: Teg, pretity much. They held a lot of parties. As I say
they had these special theme parties that were very popular)
and there were a lot of Saturday afternoon parties,as I re-
call, where a given fraternity would invite a given sororityy
‘Sﬁ?}here was a lot of that sort of thing.nydﬁd, of course, -
the/pledge dances and this sort of thing. That would take

up a lot of time, I guess, if you went to a lot of those.

The student government did do some sponsoring of events.
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I seem. to remember they tried to have spring formals one

time in the Sunken Gardegz?nd*so“wnv So there was some

of that)but that was about it)other than movies down-
town. I certainly don't remember many concerts besides
the "Hootenanny" thifr-end-Fthink-F-remenber—aZuell,
< “z
there were a couple with William and Mary students sing-
ing because I know the year I was a house president a

couple in our dorm were very good singers . and they had

3

p
kind of an informal group;%a% I can remember they give &

sort of a mini ~ hootennanny or something like that}
but other than that there wasn't much in terms of orga-
nized social activity.

Williams: For. the fraternity parties, I wondered, how adequate
were the lodges for such things? You spoke of this
0 @&R&s? ng .

Walker: Well, everybody was Just jammed together. They weren't
terribly adequate. Now, of counrse, the spectacular parties,
the ones that were really the great legendary successes,
would be when people would get Verd drunk and get up on
the roof and fall off or something like that. That gives
you the early '60s mentality, I think. And in the daytime
parties(”these afternaon partieé)a lot of people would be
outside)so you wouldn't all have +to be craégéd in if it
were nice weather. But, yes, it was kind of just everybody

a
Jjammed in together so it wasn't exactlyksophisticated atmos~

)
phere)I guess you could saxézqﬁ they weren't too adequate.
#
-~
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The big dances aﬂd—e%u%?, of course, were always held

at the campus center ballroom or something like that.
7 Z

-

So many things that I ask you I have to say that this
comes from my reading the Flat HatSbeeausg understandably
this is about the only organ of student opinion that

I have to go on. Time and time again, regardless of
editor of the Flat Hat, over the period of the early

'60s I found editorials taking the administration to

task over expansion: buildings, enrollment, and pro-
grams. And I wondered if this;;?jzust a concern of the editors
the Flat Hat or if it really does reflect a concern the
students felgrzéeping William and Mary the way they

knew it.

No, I think that was the general concern. I remember
that we always felt they were puging one over on us in
expanding;gﬁd I think people had chosen to come here be-
cause it\;as a relatively small college*_vﬁot teeny, tiny

where you'd be limited but certainly. I know that was

)
a real;_%gnsideration for me when I looked at colleges.

I had definitely decided I just wouldn't fit in or survive
very well at a Penn State or even a place a lot smaller

but still much bigger than William and Manxﬁgnd I think

that was a real student concern)that we all felt very strongly
on that point and felt they shduld keep it fairly small.

ol

I remember there was some -uproar --1course)I felt it be=~

cause I was an out-of-state student -- ewer when they
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imposed the 30 percent limit on out-of-state students.
That must have been about my sophomore year that they made
that explicit)and we decided that would mean the decline
of William and Mary. I don't know what the ratio had
been beforég‘maybe a little closer to 60:h6i;§:§ 70:30¢
but as I say, no, I think the Flat Hat there was reflect-
iﬁg student opinion because I can remember we talked a
lot about that and thought they definitely should not try
to become a huge, impersonal sort of place.\VIt‘s funnxj
x% was very different when I was heret%hat we all had

-- well, partly you had a much more rigid set of basic
requirements that everybody had to take{ﬂthe distribu~

tion requirementslpan&’phere were some big lecture classes

.50 we all tended to have the

for freshmen and SOphomores)

same experience as far as education goes. You know, if
you talk to anybody from my era -~ virtually everybody
would have taken History 101-102}and naturally you had
Fowleﬁpaﬁayghis had gone on for a long, long time be-

cause there were people in my class who had old notes
that,say,cousins or aunts or even motheré}although that
was stretching it a bit)but if the mother had married right
away or something —jtiiom Fowler's class. = It was sort

of like if you went to William and Mary in that era,=yom
kneuw Fouwler.-you had Fowler. The same was true of the seci-
ences. Now I took chemistry so of course I had Dr.

)
Guy)and I guess Baldwin did the biology.(fThose were the
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two big sciences. I don't remember who taught physics
in those days?> But there was a sense that it was a much
smaller kind of campus)even though -- well, it cer-
tainly had grown -- there must have been about 14,000
people around when I was here é;'close to ig%and yet

the sense was that we all shared a lot more in common
because you hid to.go through these courses. Now.

English of course was taught in small sections so you

)
were likely to have all had different teachersé;gfiﬁe
languagei%?ut as I say I do remember when I came back belng

\struoﬁfhow people from my era had all this in com-
mon;aﬁa if you ever met them again you could reminisce
about Professor X)and absolutely everybody would know who
that was and could remember certain things about History
101-102 -- the famous Henry VIII lecture or something like
thaqg--aﬁéfl don't think that's at all true today because
there's just so much more choice and diversity and so on.

Williams: Did you feel a sense of powerlessness -- well, you really
didn't see this new campus spring up as you were a student.

Walker: No. The only thing -- I guess Yates was built while I

was an undergraduate\and Adair Gym was finished. What's
Lhet
so funny is&it was way out in the wood%ﬁthvugh“beeaase I

can remember -- I was a mermette and the last thing I swam

)
in for them was the dedication of Adair (because my second

semester senior year I was doing honors,and I knew I wouldn't

have time to do the show and everything) but I can remember

v
-
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for rehearsals and stuff we'd sort of trudge the road that
whi oh

goes by what's now Swem and so on, was Just a dirt pat%jgsnt
A

,it seemed so far from Landrum or Chandler to get all the way

;ut to Adair)and as I say we thought they had just stuck
it in the woods or something. And Yates seemed very iso-
lated, too. But we didn't really see the big expansion.
And everybody knew they needed a new library; that was
pretty clear, so I doubt that there would have been much

objection over that, but that wasn't too much of an issue.

)
That probably came later.

We've been talking mainly about campus-based issues. On
national issues did you find that the William and Mary stu-
dents you knew were very much aware, very much con-
cerned about national issues? Now I guess this might well
go up and down with what the issue was.

Well, certainly something like a presidential election we
did care abougggﬁd I can remember we all ~- maybe we even
rented a television to watch in our dorm because nobody
had televisions!'in-those days and most of the dorms

didn't. The most you'd have wduld be a housqjmother

maybe with onejaad I think I remember she went out and

got one for us so we all pitched in and rented it so

),

we could watch the returns of the '60 campaign. Kennedy's
3

assaa?nation had a tremendous impact, I remenber. People

were very concerned about that and watched all the stuff on

television and so on. I guess we even cancelled classes for
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a day. I know they held a memorial service and things
like that. As I say. the civil rights issue I think seemed
pretty abstract to us, that we weren't doing much about
that. The missile crisisgn.ﬁhat was a big issue because it
was right around miéé%emester time)and we had all these
debates aboutjghould we bother to study if we're all going
to die in three days anyhow?geeausa-l can remember watch-
ing Kennedy's message on television. <} think maybe I'd
eaten dinner at the sorority house that night,and wmeaybe
‘tkgg had a television set:>amd~§w%hinkb§§ all sat around
and watched " this and were just petrifiéévand thought, "Oh
my God, this is the end of the world" or something. As I
say, I can remember going back and saying to my roommate,
"Well, is there any point in studying for this miqg%erm?"
And so we all debated that. Other than that though, I
don't remember ~-- I think it was only the big, spectacu~
lar events that had much impact on us.
Williams: Vietnam then was a ¥b$¢pim thing.

Walker: Yes, as far as I know it was. I just can't remember it at

allybecaus%?I don't remember even talking much about Vietnam

ok
until I wasfabe&% to graduate schoo%)which, of course, would

Jjust be oné?éar 1ate€9but I sure don't remember talking about

it at all my senior year. I don't even remember having any
sort of an opinion or hearing much about Vietnam at all)which,

of course, would make some sense because some of the big:

escalation wouldn't come until '6l,- '65 really. And I can
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remember even my first year in graduate school I couldn't
even pronounce Mao Tse-tung)so you can tell that we just
had not been discussing those issues at all. But as I

say I suspect it was only the events that were terribly
spectacular that had much impact on us.

More campus-oriented issues .. .

Yes, I think so. We were pretty isolated. I know I cer-
tainly never read any local newspapers. I think I used to
get Time, I guess,and maybe go read the Philadelphia papers
in the library every few dayg)and I knew a few people who
maybe got the New York Times by mail who were from the New
York area)but other than that I don't think we paid that much

attention until it was something you just couldn't ignore.



